WOOA



JUL 24 1991

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Députy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA, Petitioner,

v.

MATTHEW KENNY, Respondent

7.6// Case. No.

By.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA

## PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

DAVID R. GEMMER Assistant Attorney General 2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700-Tampa, Florida 33607-2366 (813) 873-4736

OF COUNSEL FOR THE STATE

#

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Matthew Kenny was serving a sentence on community control for failure to appear, burglary, and possession of cocaine. R80. While on community control:

Kenny stole money from the cash register in one restaurant (considered one incident herein);

failed to appear after being arrested for violating probation for, inter alia, drug use;

cashed five forged checks stolen from another restaurant where he worked;

and forged five credit card invoices arising from making a second invoice when preparing invoices for diners at a third restaurant. R60-61.

The total amount of money involved vis-a-vis restitution was less than \$3,000.

The state's initial sentencing guidelines sheet scored points for being under legal constraint for each of the offenses, raising Kenny's guidelines sentence to life. R199. At his original plea hearing November 28, 1989, Kenny's public defender argued that Kenny deserved a downward departure from the life sentence because of the nature of the charges. R200. Kenny and the state had been unable to agree to a negotiated plea--the state had offered 20 years in prison plus seven on probation, but Kenny would not accept the bargain. R200. Kenny had a large number of prior convictions, including fraudulent use of credit cards. R200. The judge proposed a nine year sentence plus five years on probation, and Kenny accepted the offer, without the

agreement of the state. R203 & R207-08.

Kenny asked for a brief furlough to attend to personal business before being sentenced. R203.

THE DEFENDANT: I give my word. I know what you'll do to me if I don't appear. I will be back the day you tell me to, sir.

THE COURT: You understand where [the assistant state attorney] has got you scored and what validly could happen to you if you get a failure to appear?

could happen to you if you get a failure to appear? THE DEFENDANT: I do. Unfortunately, I--I didn't understand about the multiplier until Mr. Lindsey explained it me [sic].

THE COURT: You understand what you're looking at? THE DEFENDANT: I know exactly, sir. I wouldn't ask--I wouldn't put myself in the situation if I didn't know.

THE COURT [during actual plea colloquy]: You further understand where you score on the guideline and if A) you got in any trouble or B) you failed to show up and C) you failed a drug test I'll require while you're out?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You and I couldn't have an agreement. Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

R204-07.

Despite the clear understanding of the defendant that he faced up to life in prison if he failed to appear, Kenny, true to prior form, R203 (two prior failures to appear), failed to appear as ordered December 6, 1989. R212-13. Police didn't arrest Kenny until a half year later, May 15, 1990, after denying his identity to police until they confronted him with a booking photograph. R81-82.

While the original plea had been before Judge Farnell, the new proceedings were before Judge Stoutamire. In a sentencing memorandum, the state urged that Kenny be sentenced to life, or

as close thereto as consecutive sentencing would permit. R80-84. At one of the sentencing hearings, the state suggested that the court might find a 20 year sentence, a downward departure, more acceptable, but that, ultimately, the guidelines sentence remained life because of the multiplier. R362-64. The scoresheet ultimately used by Judge Stoutamire scored only one 24 point increment for being under legal constraint, but noting, parenthetically, that twelve incidents occurred under legal constraint. R87. With the one-cell bump for violation of probation, the sentence of fifteen years, plus five probation, was within the guidelines as scored without the multiplier for legal constraint. R87. The state appealed.

The second district adhered to decisions now pending before this court for the principle that no multiplier may be used on a single scoresheet.

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The trial court should have used a scoresheet including points for legal constraint for each crime committed while on community control. The fifth district has ruled this way, and a certified question from that district is currently pending before this court.

#### ARGUMENT

## POINTS SHOULD BE SCORED FOR LEGAL CONSTRAINT FOR EVERY OFFENSE COMMITTED WHILE UNDER LEGAL CONSTRAINT

The second district relied upon three decisions from the district in support of its decision sub judice (copy attached). Those cases are now pending before this court. This court has consistently accepted jurisdiction in cases where the district court cites to cases currently pending before this court, and it has done so in this case. Rather than burden this court with repetitious argument, the state relies upon the state's briefs in the other cases now pending, and, more particularly, adopts the argument from the state's brief in <u>State v. Scott</u>, No. 77,415, a copy of which is attached hereto.

#### CONCLUSION

The decision below should be quashed.