WOOA

FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

AUG 7 1991

STATE OF FLORIDA,

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Petitioner,

Chief Deputy Clerk

____,

Case No. 77,611

MATTHEW KENNY,

vs.

....

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON THE MERITS

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

ROBERT D. ROSEN
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 0826065

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33830 (813) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

TOPICAL

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent was the Appellee in the Second District of Appeal and the defendant in the trial court. Petitioner, the State of Florida, was the Appellant in the Second District Court of Appeal. Despite a thorough search of Florida Law Weekly and Southern Reporter Second Series, and the use of Westlaw, the Appellee was unable to find a published citation for State v. Kenny, No. 90-02325 (Fla. 2d DCA March 1, 1991).

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

POINTS FOR LEGAL CONSTRAINT SHOULD ONLY BE SCORED ONCE FOR EACH SENTENCING EVENT REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF NEW OFFENSES COMMITTED WHILE SUCH CONSTRAINT WAS IMPOSED.

The First, Second, and Third District Courts of Appeal have held that legal constraint points should not be multiplied by the number of new offenses committed. Sellers v. State, 16 F.L.W. D921 (Fla. 1st DCA April 3, 1991); Lewis v. State, 574 So.2d 245 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991); Scott v. State, 574 So.2d 247 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991); Worley v. State, 573 So.2d 1023 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991); Cabrera v. State, 576 So.2d 1358 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991). The Fourth and Fifth Districts have taken the contrary position and concluded that multiplication of legal constraint points was permissible. Carter v. State, 571 So.2d 520 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991); Flowers v. State, 567 So.2d 1055 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990); Walker v. State, 546 So.2d 764 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989). Based on the plain language of Florida Rules of Evidence 3.701 and 3.988, and the rule of lenity and strict construction, this court should adopt the position of the First, Second, and Third Districts, and affirm the Second District's decision in State v. Kenny, No. 90-02325 (Fla. 2d DCA March 1, 1991).

Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure 3.701 and 3.988, do not require the use of a multiplier nor do they contain language susceptible of a different construction. These rules set forth the

procedures to be utilized under the sentencing guidelines. What conditions constitute legal status under the guidelines are spelled out in 3.701(d)(6), but nowhere in the rule or in the rule committee notes is the use of a multiplier for legal status points ever mentioned.

Additionally, there is persuasive evidence that the commission which formulated the sentencing guidelines intended defendants' legal status to be scored only once. In Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure Re: Sentencing Guidelines (Rules 3.701 and 3.988), 576 So.2d 1307 (Fla. 1991), the commission requests that the committee note to Rule 3.701(d)(6) be amended to reflect the fact that the commission never intended to allow multiple scoring of legal constraint points for each new offense. While this court held that only the legislature could approve this amendment, this court stated it agreed with the intent of the proposed change. Id at 1308-1309. Rule 3.701 contains language expressly authorizing multipliers for primary offenses, additional offenses, prior record, and victim injury. The rule was amended in 1990 to provide multipliers for victim injury for several scoresheets but no multipliers were added to the scoresheets for the legal status category. In re: Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure 3.701 and 3.988 (sentencing quidelines), 566 So.2d 770 (Fla. 1990). Therefore, it should be presumed there was no intent for the use of a multiplier for the legal status category.

Even assuming that ambiguity exists concerning the scoring of legal constraint points, the rule of lenity and strict

construction preclude the application of a multiplier. 775.021(1), Florida Statutes (1989) provides "[t]he provisions of this code and offenses defined by other statutes shall be strictly construed; when the language is susceptible of differing constructions, it shall be construed most favorably to the accused." Strict construction requires that nothing that is not clearly and intelligently described in a statute's very words, as well as manifestly intended by the legislature, is to be considered within its terms; and where there is such an ambiguity as to leave reasonable doubt of its meaning, where it admits of two constructions, that which operates in favor of liberty is to be taken. Lewis v. State, 574 So.2d at 246. In Lewis, the Second District applied the rule of lenity and strict construction to the sentencing quidelines rules and statutes and correctly concluded that a multiplier may not be used with legal constraint to arrive at a recommended quidelines sentence. Id. This court should do the same.

than one offense while under legal constraint should be penalized more harshly by using the multiplier, than a person who commits only one offense. There is, however, a flaw in this logic. A person demonstrates his lack of ability or desire to comply with such restraint if he commits one or one hundred new offenses. The purpose of legal constraint points is to punish or enhance the sentence based upon this lack of compliance, a factor which need only be assessed once. In addition, a person who commits several

new offenses does receive a harsher sentence than a person who commits only one. Each of those new offenses are calculated into the guidelines and are part and parcel of the sentence ultimately received. The use of a multiplier for legal constraint points would result in disproportionate sentences conflicting with the ultimate purpose of the guidelines, uniformity in sentencing.

The decisions of the First, Second and Third District Courts of Appeal correctly conclude that multipliers should not be applied when assessing legal constraint points. Thus, the decision of the Second District Court of Appeals in Kenny, should be affirmed.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing arguments and authorities this Court should hold that legal constraint points should not be multiplied and should uphold the decision in Kenny.